MAUREEN KIRK, CHAIR
Supervisor, District 3

JAMES JOHANSSON, VICE CHAIR
Vice Mayor, Oroville

BiLL CONNELLY
Supervisor, District #1

JANE DOLAN
Supervisor, District #2

STEVE LAMBERT
Supervisor, District #4

KiM YAMAGUCHI
Supervisor, District #5

ANGELA THOMPSON
Councilmember, Biggs

SCOTT GRUENDL
Councilmember, Chico

JERRY ANN FICHTER
Mayor, Gridley

ALAN WHITE
Councilmember, Paradise

Members Present

Maureen Kirk, Chair

James Johansson, Vice Chair
Jane Dolan

Bill Connelly

Steve Lambert

Kim Yamaguchi

Jerry Ann Fichter

Scott Gruend|

Alan White

Members Absent
Angela Thompson

1. Call to Order.

W. James Wagoner
Air Pollution Control Officer

(530) 891-2882
(530) 891-2878 Fax

Minutes of the Butte County
Air Quality Management District
Governing Board of Directors Meeting
Of October 22, 2009

Butte County Supervisor

Vice Mayor, City of Oroville
Butte County Supervisor
Butte County Supervisor
Butte County Supervisor
Butte County Supervisor
Mayor, City of Gridley
Councilmember, City of Chico

Staff Present

W. James Wagoner
Gail Williams
Robyn Sousa
Stephen Ertle
Patricia Cummings

Councilmember, Town of Paradise

Councilmember, City of Biggs

Others Present
Luke Anderson
Linda Herman
Steve Schoonover

Air Pollution Control Officer
Senior Air Quality Planner
Admin, Services Officer

Sr. AQ Compliance Specialist
Clerk of the Board

Member of the Public
City of Chico
Chico Enterprise Record

Chair Kirk called the meeting to order at 10:15 a.m. at the Chico City Council Chambers, 421 Main Street, Chico,

California.

2. Additions and Deletions to the Consent Agenda.

Jim Wagoner requested that Item 3.5 be removed for discussion.

3. Consent Agenda.

3.1 By consent, approve minutes of the September 24, 2009 meeting of the Board of Directors.

Agenda Iltem 3.1

2525 Dominic Drive, Suite ] € Chico, CA 95928



Butte County Air Quality Management District
Board of Director’s Meeting Minutes
October 22, 2009

3.2 By consent, accept and file, Activity Report on Butte County Air Quality Management District activities.

3.3 By consent, accept and file, report on Financial Status Report for Fiscal Year 2009-2010.

34 By consent, accept and file, status report on Calendar of Events.

3.6 By consent, accept and file, status report on California Air Pollution Control Officer's Association activities.

3.7 By consent, accept and file, ratified 2009-2012 Butte County Air Quality Management District Employee
Memorandum of Understanding.

3.8 By consent, accept and file, status report on registration amnesty period for stationary and portable engines
used in agricultural operations.

3.9 By consent, accept and file, status report on draft amendments to Regulation 1ll, Open Burning, to meet the
requirements of Senate Bill 656 and the California Air Resources Board audit.

Action Requested: Approve Consent Agenda ltems 3.1 through 3.4 and 3.6 through 3.9.
Motion: Approve Consent Agenda ltems 3.1 through 3.4 and 3.6 through 3.9.

AYES: Supervisor Kirk, Vice Mayor Johansson (Second), Supervisor Connelly, Supervisor Dolan,
Supervisor Lambert, Supervisor Yamaguchi, Mayor Fichter, Councilmember Gruend|,
Councilmember White (Motion)

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:  Councilmember Thompson

Regular Agenda
4. ltems removed from the Consent Agenda for Board consideration and action.

3.5 By consent, accept and file, status report on air quality related legislation.

Jim Wagoner stated that the legislation related to city alternates on air boards, Senate Bill 113, was passed by the
Assembly and Senate and signed by the Governor and will be allowed as of January 1, 2010.

AYES: Supervisor Kirk, Vice Mayor Johansson, Supervisor Connelly, Supervisor Dolan, Supervisor Lambert,
Supervisor Yamaguchi, Mayor Fichter, Councilmember Gruend! (Second),
Councilmember White (Motion)

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Councilmember Thompson

7. Report on final PM2.5 nonattainment area designation for Butte County.

Jim Wagoner presented information on U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s final PM2.5 nonattainment area
designation for Butte County. He explained that the timeline would likely be; the State Implementation Plan;
November 2012 (3 years), Attainment Date: November 2014 (5 years) and Attainment Date with Extension (must be
requested): November 2019 (10 years). He explained that the plan that is put together has to have an attainment
demonstration, regulations and measures to demonstrate that attainment.

Page 2



Butte County Air Quality Management District
Board of Director’s Meeting Minutes
October 22, 2009

He further explained that if the District cannot put that plan together for whatever reason and the 2012 deadline is
missed, there is the potential for US EPA to come in and impose their own plan for the area, known as a Federal
Implementation Plan (FIP), in which they adopt regulations for your area.

Councilmember Gruend| asked that if Butte County's plan fails to demonstrate or reach attainment, is there a way yet
to articulate what the potential loss of federal transportation dollars would be.

~ Jim Wagoner stated that at this point, no.

Councilmember Gruendl stated that as the Board thinks about developing the attainment plan he feels that it is
important that the Board be fully informed of what the consequences would be if we fail to develop a plan that
reaches attainment. He stated that Butte County Association of Governments is really good at allocating federal
dollars to various projects throughout Butte County or individual jurisdictions, so at some point if we were to be
penalized and lose federal revenue, how would that loss be allocated? He explained that when it comes to PM2.5
attainment, the City of Chico is going to have to do a lot of that on their own, however, if resources and funding are
going to be expended by the City and Butte County achieves some level of penalty, the City would be limited, to a
certain extent, of accepting a share of that penalty because they tried.

Supervisor Yamaguchi stated that he wants staff to have solutions that are amicable to all areas that allow for a
good and reasonable plan that is palatable and he thinks that staff would get some cooperation in that regard. He
further suggested a committee or some way to work with staff to bring solutions forward that are palatable versus
throwing out something that is going to be rejected.

Vice Mayor Johansson asked where the money comes from for implementing programs?

Jim Wagoner stated that as an example, woodstove regulation that was proposed at the last meeting, was budgeted
and planned to use the current staff. He explained that the additional cost regarding staffing would have been just in
overtime, which would have been managed within the District budget.

Vice Mayor Johansson stated that we need to be reminded that if we go for some elaborate plan, that looks great on
paper and makes everyone feel good, but we can we afford it? He further stated that he would anticipate that any
action the Chico City Council were to take, the burden would fall on this Board to assist them in enforcing that
financially.

Councilmember Gruend! stated that absent the plan, the City of Chico has its commitment that it wants to move
forward on dealing with the curtailment of wood smoke. He stated that there is already a significant investment by
the City of Chico via its staff time and the effort that is beginning to emerge as to how we would work cooperatively
with the Butte County Air Quality Management District, the City and the county because of the unincorporated islands
within the sphere of influence that are known to have concentrations of wood stoves. He explained that there is a
cost associated with creating a structure that is separate and apart from this organization, which has this in their
mission statement. He stated that he realizes that he lost that vote but is just underscoring what the outcome of that
loss means to the City of Chico. He explained that it comes at a significant cost and the City of Chico is not the only
part in the green area, yet we are going to accept the burden, at this point, of at least trying to achieve attainment
absent the bigger plan. He concluded stating that he fully recognizes that we have yet to develop that plan and

Page 3



Butte County Air Quality Management District
Board of Director’s Meeting Minutes
October 22, 2009

things could certainly turn out different than they are today and for that reason he is hopeful.
ACTION REQUESTED: Receive report.

The Board took no further action.

5. 2009-2010 Voluntary Check Before You Light Program.

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve 2009-2010 voluntary Check Before You Light program. After consideration
staff recommends your Board approve the program as proposed.

Gail Williams, Senior Air Quality Planner, presented information on the 2009-2010 Check Before You Light program.

Vice Mayor Johansson stated that perhaps the District should contact people known to have burned on past advisory
days and let them know that currently this is a voluntary program and that absent any changes in federal regulations
the District would anticipate that it could become mandatory in the next 3-7 years, therefore this is to let you know
that that if this would have been mandatory you would have been in violation.

He further stated that the District could track how often inspectors find people out of compliance with advisories, so
that if people come before this Board in the next 3-5 years, we can say that you have never been noticed to be in
violation of this, so what is your worry with the program.

He stated that although it is voluntary, the District could ramp it up as if it were mandatory by informing people that if
this would have been mandatory, they would have been in violation and thank them for their awareness and ask
them to call this number to Check Before You Light, keeping it very pleasant.

Gail Williams stated that the District was not planning on doing patrols like last year and that most all enforcement is
based on complaints. She stated that if the Board wanted the District to do patrolling, we would.

Jim Wagoner stated that the District could modify the postcard to include the ramifications.

Vice Mayor Johansson stated that if the District discovered over the course of the year that for example, there were
24 voluntary Check Before You Light days and during that time only 4 homes were in violation, then the District
would know that probably there is a bigger issue than the fireplaces as far as air quality is concerned. He stated that
by letting the public know that it is voluntary right now, this Board (or worse case scenario EPA comes in and forces
the county into it) can say that every effort to start notifying people that this is the way it is going to go.

Gail Williams stated that 47% of the problem is wood stove smoke, 10% is uncontroliable and the rest is agricultural.
She explained that there are very limited other areas where reduction of fine particulate matter can be made.

Supervisor Kirk asked if the postcards helped at all and if some people got better?

Gail Williams stated that no, because old fireplaces did not get changed out, however awareness was increased.

Page 4



Butte County Air Quality Management District
Board of Director’s Meeting Minutes
October 22, 2009

Jim Wagoner stated that the District received some calls but not as many as was thought. He explained that 800
postcards were sent out but the District did not receive a lot of response.

Councilmember Gruend| stated that he would like to support Vice Mayor Johansson's position to change the
information so that people will understand that although it is voluntary today it may not be next time and to encourage
people to do this so that it is not forced. He explained that the postcard could say to check with the District about
potential subsidies for changing your woodstove for an efficient stove, at least to the extent that there is ARRA
funding becoming available on the energy efficiency side of the house which can be used for woodstove change
outs.

Councilmember White suggested sending out a letter, not a postcard, as a preemptive strike before the burn season
starts, stating the potential concerns and the potential solutions for those concerns. He explained that the District
should send them out in advance so that people might have an opportunity to plan, as a proactive step, not as a
reactive step. He stated that the District should look at the demographics, like older neighborhoods where there is a
problem. He suggested that on the Check Before You Light Advisory instead of saying “requesting residents of
Chico”, maybe say “requesting residents in the Chico area”.

Gail Williams stated that the District was looking at doing a TV advertisement.

Councilmember White stated that the problem with a TV advertisement is that you are not targeting the market, other
than targeting the demographic for that station. He stated that if you are, for example, going to advertise on a news
program, you are probably going to get people that are not going to understand.

Supervisor Dolan stated that she felt the District could target with TV. She suggested doing a video on the proper
way to burn. She stated it could show practices such as using seasoned wood, covering the wood so that it does not
get wet, stop burning trash, newspaper, Christmas wrapping or other items. She further explained that the video
could give a plug for the manufacturing log people and show that when you go to sleep at night, do not let it smolder
into your neighbor’s lungs. She suggested that the District could put it on Utube.

Gail Williams stated that presently the District has their videos on Utube and that maybe the District could point that
out on the postcard.

Supervisor Dolan stated that she did not know that the District had videos on Utube and does not know how to find it.
She suggested contacting the groups that have indicated to the Board through all these hearings that they would like
to help. She stated that they can broadcast information to their members or neighbors. She suggested that the
District get a Twitter account.

Jim Wagoner stated that the District has a Twitter account set up, but has not used it yet. He explained that the
District set it up in the spring anticipating that there would be wildfires and air quality advisories.

Supervisor Dolan suggested that the District send information to property management firms due to the fact that
many of the older neighborhoods are probably occupied by tenants. She stated that the property management firms
can then send the information with whatever notices they send out.  She further stated that when the District sends
her an email, it is not something that she opens right away because “Check Before You Light Advisory Voluntary

Page 5



Butte County Air Quality Management District
Board of Director's Meeting Minutes
October 22, 2009

Program’, does not grab her attention. She suggested that maybe the email should state something like, “Tonight is
the night you better think about not buming”. She also suggested that maybe if the District cannot afford to mail the
postcard, we do a little day of just taking them around.

Gail Williams stated that in the old days that is how the District did things with brochures, taking them to the Chamber
of Commerce or to whoever wanted them. She further explained that when she would give presentations, she would
bring a stack of brochures and those that she gave the presentation to would share them with their groups such as
league of Women Voters, Democratic Women's Group, Rotary Club or anyone that would invite us. She stated that
maybe the District should work with the broadcast people because they have some really good marketing ideas that
the District might be able to use.

Supervisor Dolan stated that people are busy and just need to know how is this information is going to affect them.
She suggested that the District contact Chico Avenues Association and Barber Neighborhood Association because
they know their neighbors and they can get the information out.

Supervisor Kirk stated that she agreed that working with neighborhood associations and maybe getting into their
newsletters, such as California Park has a newsletter, is a good way to share information.

Jim Wagoner stated that since this a voluntary program and since there are monitors in Paradise and Gridley, we
could potentially have Check Before You Light Advisories in those areas and other areas of the county. He further
stated that the Districts focus with regard to public outreach is Chico. He explained that the media will cover the
whole county, but just wanted to make sure that the Board was aware that there is a possibility, depending on the air
quality in those other areas, an advisory could go outside of the Chico area.

Luke Anderson expressed concerns about the Board failing o pass the mandatory no bumn rule and certain Board
member comments, to which Board members responded.

Councilmember Gruendl stated that he would make the motion for approval and acceptance with the
inclusion of the ideas that were expressed.

Gail Williams stated with the inclusion to do demographic mailings and the concern about it possibly becoming a
mandatory program at a future date.

Jim Wagoner stated with the inclusion of the possibility of the program being a mandatory in the future if the voluntary
program does not work, sending preemptive postcards to households previously identified as having a problem
smoking chimney and using other means such as twitter to publish the advisories.

Gail Williams added also with the inclusion of getting some marketing help.

Councilmember White stated with the inclusion of other areas in the Butte County Air Quality Management District

that have monitoring stations available, not specifically Paradise and Gridley, in the event that additional monitoring
stations are installed, to be notified when they are in nonattainment.

Page 6






